
To: James P. Hoffa, IBT General President 

From Members of the Independent Review Board 

Re: Proposed Charges against Local 522 Benefit Fund 
Trustees Robert Moore and Robert DeLoatch and Former 
Benefit Fund Trustee Albert Olin 

Date March 11, 2003 

I. RECOMMENDATION 

The Independent Review Board ("IRB") refers the below 

report to the IBT General President recommending that Robert 

Moore ("Moore"), Robert DeLoatch ("DeLoatch") and Albert Olin 

("Olin"), who were the Trustees of the Local 522 Benefit Funds, 

be charged with bringing reproach upon the IBT and violating 

their duties as fiduciaries of IBT-affiliated Benefit Funds by 

allowing the Local 522 affiliated Benefit Funds to pay large, 

unsupported administrative and other expenses to the Local.^ By 

their conduct it appears that Moore, DeLoatch and Olin violated 

Article II, Section 2(a) and 2(b)(2) and (7) and Article XIX, 

Section 7(b)(1) and (2) of the IBT Constitution.^ 

! On January 27, 2003, the IRB issued a report 
recommending that Local 522 be placed in Trusteeship. The IBT 
placed the Local in Trusteeship effective March 10, 2003. 

2 Article II, Section 2(b) of the IBT Constitution 
entitled "Union Fiduciary's Code of Ethics" provides: 

[a]ny member who serves as a fiduciary of an employee 
benefit plan covering members or employees of the 
International or any of its subordinate bodies shall 
pledge to follow the following Code of Ethics with 
respect to his or her service as a fiduciary to the 



As detailed below, between January 1996 and October 

2002, Local 522 received a total of at least $1,478,849 directly 

and indirectly in improper payments from the Local's five 

affiliated Benefit Funds. (Exs. 1 and 5) In January 1996, a third 

party administrator was retained to administer each of the five 

Benefit Funds. After that time, the Benefit Funds paid 

$1,291,548 directly to the Local for alleged administrative 

services. (Ex. 1) In addition to the direct payments from the 

Benefit Funds to the Local, as detailed below, the Benefit Funds 

also improperly paid a portion of the Local's rent, telephone 

expenses and building expenses thereby reducing the Local's 

expenses. From February 1996 through January 2002, these 

payments totalled $187,301. (Exs. 2-5) As detailed below, without 

plan: 
* * * 

(2) The fiduciary shall exercise his or her duties 
with respect to the plan with the care, skill, 
prudence, and diligence under the circumstances that a 
prudent person familiar with such matters would use 
acting under similar circumstances. 

* * * 

(7) The fiduciary shall not cause the plan to incur 
unreasonable administrative or other expenses not 
necessary for the establishment or operation of the 
plan, in accordance with established law. 

These provisions were added to the IBT Constitution during the 
1996 IBT Convention. By memorandum dated August 28, 1996, these 
provisions, among other amendments, were distributed to all IBT 
affiliates advising that these provisions were in effect. (Ex. 
10) These Constitutional provisions were consistent with the 
obligations of Benefit Fund Trustees pursuant to ERISA. 29 U.S.C. 
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the improper payments made between January 1996 and December 31, 

2001, the Local would not have had any assets and would have had 

a deficit of $1, 006, 969. (Ex. 6)^ 

As detailed below, Benefit Funds Trustees DeLoatch, 

Moore and Olin did not know basic information about the direct 

and indirect payments from the Benefit Funds to the Local. (Ex. 

21 at 27-31; Ex. 22 at 27-30; Ex. 78 at 15-17) The Trustees knew 

that Benserco, Inc. ("Benserco") administered each of the Benefit 

Funds. (Ex. 21 at 24-27; Ex. 22 at 25-26; Ex. 78 at 23, 28-30) 

There were no written cost sharing agreements between the Local 

and any of the Benefit Funds. There were no records showing that 

the Trustees or other Local employees performed administrative 

services for the Benefit Funds. (Ex. 21 at 19-21; Ex. 22 at 21-

22, 26-27; Ex. 78 at 18-19, 21, 24-25) Given the obligations of 

the third party administrator, there would have been no reason 

for Local personnel to perform services on behalf of the Benefit 

Funds. In addition, the evidence did not support the percentage 

of time the accountant claimed Local personnel allegedly spent on 

Benefit Funds work. 

As fiduciaries of the Benefit Funds, Trustees DeLoatch, 

Moore and Olin were required to ensure that the Benefit Funds 

paid only reasonable administrative and other expenses. 

Nevertheless, the Trustees did not know how the payments from the 

§ 1104(a), 1106 and 1108(b)(2). 
3 This analysis was based upon the Local's Form LM-2 

filings. The 2001 Form LM-2 was the most recent filing. 
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Benefit Funds to the Local were calculated. (Ex. 21 at 27-31; Ex. 

22 at 27-30; Ex. 78 at 15-17) 

As detailed below, it appears that Benefit Funds 

Trustees DeLoatch, Moore and Olin brought reproach upon the IBT 

and breached their fiduciary duties when they allowed the Benefit 

Funds to pay unreasonable administrative and other expenses in 

violation of Article II, Section 2(a) and 2(b)(2) and (7) and 

Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1) and (2) of the IBT Constitution. 

II. SUMMARY 

Local 522 is located in Jamaica, New York and 

represents approximately 1,800 members who worked as lumber 

drivers, warehousemen, handlers and roofers in the New Jersey and 

greater New York metropolitan areas. (Ex. 7)" Although 

headquartered in New York, Local 522 is a member of Joint Council 

73 in New Jersey. 

There are five Benefit Funds affiliated with Local 522: 

the Local 522 Pension Fund ("Pension Fund"), the Local 522 

Welfare Fund of Greater New York ("Welfare Fund"), the Local 522 

Welfare Fund of New York and New Jersey ("Welfare Fund of NY and 

NJ"), the Local 522 Pension Plan - Roofers Division ("Roofers 

Pension Fund") and the Local 522 Independent Roofing and Sheet 

Metal Crafts Welfare Fund ("Roofers Welfare Fund") (collectively 

4 The Local also had a satellite office in Elizabeth, New 
Jersey. 
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"Benefit Funds"). 

From approximately 1995 through January 2001, Olin was 

a Trustee of the Local's five Benefit Funds. (Ex. 78 at 11; Ex. 

71) Since January 1999, DeLoatch, Local 522's President, has 

been a Trustee of each of the five Benefit Funds. (Exs. 161-162, 

168; Ex. 21 at 12) Since January 2001, Moore, who was hired as a 

business agent in March 2000, has been a Trustee of the Benefit 

Funds. (Ex. 22 at 4-5, 15-16; Exs. 35, 71 and 152) Since October 

2002, Moore has been the Local's principal officer. 

Prior to January 1996, Local employees administered the 

Benefit Funds and the Benefit Funds reimbursed the Local for such 

services. In January 1996, Benserco was retained as the third 

party administrator for the five Benefit Funds. As detailed 

below, pursuant to its written contract with the Benefit Funds, 

Benserco provided complete administrative services to the Funds 

including maintaining an office for the Funds, maintaining all 

Funds records and answering inquiries from participants. (Ex. 8) 

Between January 1996 and August 2002, the Benefit Funds paid 

Benserco a total of approximately $1,541,935 for third party 

administration. (Ex. 9) 

Despite the contract with Benserco for administrative 

services, as detailed below, each month each of the affiliated 

Benefit Funds paid Local 522 for administrative services Local 

employees allegedly performed. Since July 1999, each year the 

Benefit Funds reimbursed 37% of the Local's total payroll costs 



including all salaries, FICA tax payments, health and welfare 

contributions and contributions to four pension funds on behalf 

of Local employees. (Exs. 13 and 81) Between January 1996 and 

October 2002, these payments for alleged administrative services 

totalled more than $1,291,548. (Ex. 1) Although Benserco and the 

Benefit Funds entered into a written agreement requiring Benserco 

to provide comprehensive administrative services, Benserco was 

only paid approximately $274,587 more for administrative services 

than the Local received for administrative services allegedly 

performed on the Benefit Funds' behalf during the same period. 

(Exs. 1, 9 and 14) 

In addition to the direct payments from the Benefit 

Funds to the Local, the Benefit Funds indirectly subsidized Local 

expenses without any apparent justification.^ Although the 

Benefit Funds were not located in the Local offices after January 

1996, since that time the Benefit Funds have paid a portion of 

the Local's rent, telephone expenses and building expenses in 

addition to the direct payments from the Benefit Funds to the 

Local. (Exs. 2-5) Since July 1999, the Benefit Funds paid 34% of 

the Local's rent and building expenses and 33% of the Local's 

telephone bill. (Exs. 13 and 81) Since January 1996, these 

indirect subsidies totalled $187,301. (Exs. 2-5) 

There were no written cost sharing agreements between 

5 As detailed below, these indirect subsidies were based 
upon the alleged time Local employees reportedly performed 
administrative work for the Benefit Funds. 

6 



the Local and any of the Benefit Funds describing any 

administrative services Local employees performed. Indeed, 

Trustees DeLoatch, Moore and Olin did not know how the payments 

from the Benefit Funds to the Local were calculated. (Ex. 21 at 

28-31; Ex. 22 at 27-31; Ex. 78 at 15-17) For example, Olin 

testified: 

Q: . . . How is it calculated that the pension fund pays part 
of your salary? 

A: I have no idea. 

Q: How do you know that they pay part of your salary or that 
they did? 

A: That's what I was told. I never seen the document, how 
much they paid or how they paid. 

(Ex. 78 at 15-16) 

The evidence, including the testimony of DeLoatch, 

Moore, Olin and the Local's other employees, demonstrated that 

the Local's employees did little, if any, work for the Benefit 

Funds. Rather, DeLoatch, Moore and Olin and the Local's other 

employees referred members with health and welfare and pension 

questions to Benserco. (Ex. 21 at 21-22; Ex. 22 at 24-26; Ex. 23 

at 12-13, 16; Ex. 78 at 28; Ex. 30 at 9-11) Benserco was 

obligated to answer these questions pursuant to its comprehensive 

contract with the Benefit Funds. (Ex. 8) 

Despite the IBT's issuance of at least two 

communications cautioning that cost sharing agreements with 

Benefit Funds must be well documented, the Trustees continued to 



allow the Benefit Funds to make payments for alleged 

administrative services without any time records to support the 

payments.*' Given the lack of documentation showing what and how 

frequently administrative services were performed for the Benefit 

Funds, the large payments from the Benefit Funds were 

unreasonable. 

The amount of the direct payments from the Benefit 

Funds to the Local for alleged administrative services and the 

indirect subsidies from the Benefit Funds to benefit the Local 

were calculated based upon "surveys" the accountant prepared 

which included time percentages Local personnel allegedly spent 

on Fund matters. (Exs. 13, 24-27, 81, 171-173)^ Trustees Moore 

and Olin testified that they never saw the accountant's 

allocation records. (Ex. 22 at 30; Ex. 78 at 16-17) Moreover, 

these surveys appear to be shams. The surveys were not supported 

by any records showing that the Local employees performed work 

6 In a June 12, 2000 written advisory from IBT General 
Secretary-Treasurer C. Thomas Keegel ("Keegel") which was issued 
to all Locals, the IBT cautioned that cost sharing agreements 
must be carefully monitored and documented. (Ex. 16) In addition, 
Keegel also issued a manual entitled, "Local Union Financial and 
Administrative Policies and Procedures" which referenced the June 
12, 2000 advisory and stated that Local Executive Boards must 
approve cost sharing agreements. (Ex. 18) 

7 Since July 1999, the payments from the Benefit Funds 
to the Local have been based upon the accountant's survey dated 
July 1999. This was when his last survey was allegedly 
conducted. (Ex. 28 at 60-61) Robert M. Levine ("Levine"), the 
accountant for the Local and the five Benefit Funds, claimed that 
a new survey was planned but was delayed based upon construction 
at the Local's offices and the IRB investigation. (Ex. 28 at 4, 
63-64) 
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for the Benefit Funds.^ In addition, an analysis of DeLoatch's 

work reports for July through December 19, 2002, showed that he 

attributed approximately 12% of his time to Benefit Funds 

matters. (Exs. 33 and 155)^ In contrast to this, the survey the 

Local's accountant allegedly conducted attributed 50% of 

DeLoatch's time to Benefit Fund work. (Ex. 81) The accountant's 

figure was used to calculate the payments from the Benefit Funds. 

The Trustees allowed a conflict to exist in that the accountant 

who calculated how much the Local was owed was also the 

accountant for the Benefit Funds with an obligation to ensure the 

payments to the Local were justified. 

III. JURISDICTION 

8 During his sworn examination, the Local's accountant 
claimed that in the absence of any records regarding work 
performed for the Benefit Funds, he and his staff interviewed 
Local employees to determine the amount of time spent performing 
work for the Benefit Funds. (Ex. 28 at 39-45, 49-50, 54, 56-57) 
The accountant had no records of any such interviews. (Ex. 28 at 
39-45, 49-50, 54, 56-57) Nor could he identify which employees 
were interviewed. (Ex. 28 at 39-45, 49-50, 54, 56-57) 
Furthermore, several Local employees testified that they had not 
been interviewed about their Funds work since 1996. (Ex. 21 at 
20-21, 31-32; Ex. 30 at 19; Ex. 23 at 22-23) 

9 Prior to July 2002, when the IRB sworn examinations 
were conducted, DeLoatch and Moore, who were full-time business 
agents in addition to being Benefit Fund Trustees, prepared work 
reports for the Local which reflected conversations with members 
about benefits but did not state how long these conversations 
lasted or whether they involved anything more than referring them 
to Benserco or were about collective bargaining issues not 
properly chargeable to the Funds. (Exs. 31 and 32) After the IRB 
sent sworn examination notices to the Local's officers and 
business agents, in July 2002 DeLoatch and Moore began to 
attribute time to their activities. (Exs. 33 and 34) 


